
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

 
Agenda 

 
The February 2014 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District 
will be held on Thursday, February 20, 2014 at 6:00 pm at the Central Library, 101 E. Church 
St. Elmira, NY 14901.  The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, 
please inform Mr. Roberts (271-9625), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2014-7) and  
4.  Treasurer’s report  
 a)  Financial report (document #2014-8) 
 b)  Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2014-9) 
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report   
7.  Director’s Report  
 8.  Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Roberts)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-10) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Cook) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-1) 
c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Savash) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  
d) Personnel Committee (Cady)  

9.  Old business  
10.  New business  
11.  Period for public expression  
12.  Adjournment  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/�


(Minutes of the JANUARY 2014 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of 
Trustees.  Document #2014-7) 
 
Minutes of the January 2014 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of 
Trustees. The meeting was held on Thursday, January 16th, 2013 at the Central Branch, 101 East 
Church Street, Elmira, New York. President Richard Roberts called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. 
Present were Ann Hayes, Georgia Reynolds, John Savash, Bonnie Chollet, Sue Cook, Michael 
Muldoon, Marge Kappanadze, Juan Jones, Ann Cady, James Hare, Tim Blandford and Jessica 
Roberts.  Excused: Rita Dery and Rachel Dworkin.  Also present were Ron Shaw, the Library 
District’s Director and Joan Santulli, the Library District’s Administrative Assistant.  
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the December  2013 meeting (Document #2014-1) were presented for 
board review. The minutes were corrected (J. Savash was excused and a Ms. Roberts was changed to 
Mr. Roberts) and approved by unanimous consent.   
 
Financial  Report. The December 31st, 2013 Financial Report (Document #2014-2) was presented 
for board review. By unanimous consent, the December Financial Report was approved as distributed 
and will be filed for audit. 
 
Report of Unpaid Bills. (Document #2014-3). Ms. Cook noted that the bill lists include the 1st 
installment to Perry & Carroll for the 2014 insurance policies and a Demco bill for furniture for the 
Horseheads Library being funded by the Public Library Foundation. By unanimous consent, the 
board authorizes the payment of the unpaid bills dated 12/31/13 General Fund - $22,188.79 and Grant 
Fund $565.03; the unpaid bills dated 1/6/14 General Fund - $9,133.45 and 1/8/14 General Fund - 
$20,078.71 as distributed.   
 
Newly elected board members – Ann Hayes - District 2; Georgia Reynolds – District 3; John Savash 
– District 4; Bonnie Chollet – District 5; Marge Kappanadze – District 8 and Juan Jones – District 9  
then took their oath of office given by notary Sherrill Collins.   
 
Correspondence. Mr. Shaw passed around thank you notes from the National Soaring Museum 
(program with Mrs. Claus) and the Elmira Water Board (for use of the building). End of year 
donations were received from Mr. Combs, the Moehlmann family and Ms. C. Cook.  Also CCLD 
received a map letter from Mr. Nykiel. Also received was a $3,000 check from the Southern Tier 
Library System (STLS) to be used for Adult Literacy Training in the Computer Lab.  

 
President’s Report.  President Roberts stated that an initial meeting between the Negotiating 
Committee and CSEA reps has not yet been scheduled.  
 
 
Director’s Report.   Mr. Shaw discussed the following: 

• CCLD IT issues. Due to many other IT issues that have taken precedence over the last couple 
of years, the Library District is now in crisis mode for the replacement of computers at all 
branches.  Eighty-one computers are no longer supported under a maintenance agreement.  
New computers will cost approximately $700 each.  The computer grant that CCLD is waiting 
funding from can be used to purchase some of the replacements.  The current IT reserve fund 
may need to be tapped as well.  

• Staff. The vacant Youth Services Clerk position has been filled.  This completes the process 
that was started last February with Civil Service.  It also completes a requirement of the 
strategic plan.  Staff members are now being asked to view cost saving technical training 
webinars that will save the Library District on registration fees and travel expenses.   



• Programs.  A new home-school program is being planned for the Big Flats Library and will 
kickoff in March. Program attendance at Big Flats has gone down since 2010. Ms. Peel, the 
new Big Flats Supervisor will be contacting the Community Center to work with them on 
doing some programs at the Center. Happy Hogmanay (fine forgiveness week) was a success 
with 331 items collected.  

• STLS issues.  The Library District is still awaiting information on the Southern Tier West 
Grant that will fund new computers.  Regarding the expenditure and selection of 
DownLoadable materials using cost-share, only 7 libraries in the system have responded that 
they will select their own materials.  The balance will be split between STLS, Corning and 
CCLD. The $3,000 check received from STLS this month will be used to provide computer 
literacy classes to community members. Mr. Shaw has requested consideration form STLS for 
the Library District to have 2 representatives on the Director’s Advisory Council.  CCLD has 
had only one vote in spite of the fact that we are the only multiple branch library in the 
system, are the Central Library, and pay the largest amount of cost share. Regarding “Freegal” 
– a downloadable music streaming software, STLS is waiting to fill the Deputy Director 
position before this will be finalized.  
  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the board 
(Document #2014-4). President Roberts stated the work place safety inspection required by Worker’s 
Compensation has been completed.  A new Safety Committee (made up of staff) will be formed and a 
Safety Manual will be created.  The Committee discussed the flood insurance quotes which will be 
covered at this meeting under Old Business.  
 
Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was 
distributed in writing to the board (Document #2014-5). Ms. Cook stated that all items discussed at 
their meeting have been covered.  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee meeting was 
submitted in writing to the board (Document #2014-6). The Committee reviewed an interim invoice 
from Foor & Associates (Project Manager for the 2013 State Construction projects).  Mr. Savash 
moved, seconded by Mr. Muldoon to pay the $600 invoice from Foor & Associates.  Motion Carried.  
Regarding the Worker’s Compensation inspection, the County Buildings & Grounds staff has already 
begun working on correcting the items mentioned in the inspection.  Since Sue Oliver has all the 
diagrams of CCLD buildings, she was contacted to draw up diagrams of emergency exits to post in 
all our facilities.  
 
Regarding the Horseheads facility, Supervisor Ms. Poppendeck will be requesting funding for several 
projects from the Public Library Foundation of Chemung County (the Horseheads Foundation). Said 
projects include full carpet replacement, painting of the interior of the building and some new 
furniture. These projects total an approximate $38,000.  
 
Mr. Savash requested board input on whether or not members of his committee can video conference 
into their meetings.  He will follow up by contacting the State to determine what the law states about 
this.  Mr. Savash also stated that he has been working on a 3-year planning budget for CCLD.  The 
future financial picture looks bleak.  This multi year budget will be presented to the board once it is 
complete.  Based on this, Mr. Savash feels strongly that the Library District place a moratorium on 
any future capital projects at both the Big Flats and West Elmira Libraries and focus instead on the 
Horseheads and Central Libraries. Current State Construction projects can continue to take place due 
to the funds that CCLD has placed in reserve for those expenditures.    
 



Personnel Committee. Ms. Cady stated that the Committee needs to meet before Mr. Shaw’s 
vacation at the end of February.  
 
Old Business. The newest flood insurance quotes have come in at $11,794.  This amount is over and 
above the amount set aside for insurance in the 2014 budget but is lower than the original $16,000 
quote.  Following discussion about whether or not to insure all CCLD buildings, Ms. Reynolds 
moved, seconded by Mr. Hare to have flood insurance on the Central, Big Flats, West Elmira and 
Horseheads Libraries.  Motion Carried. 
 
New Business. None. 
 
Public Expression.  Joe Caparulo, President of the Friends of CCLD, stated that volunteers are 
needed at their annual book sale which starts February 6, 2014 at the Arnot Mall.  Sherrill Collins, 
STLS board member stated that the Library System is doing some internal reorganization and is 
redefining and clarifying its role with member libraries.  
 
Ms. Roberts  moved, seconded by Mr. Blandford to move into Executive Session to discuss personnel 
and  Union contract negotiations. Moved by Ms. Reynolds, seconded by Mr. Jones.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:. The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, 
February 20th, 2014 at 6:00pm at the Central Library (Steele), 101 East Church Street, Elmira, New 
York.   





















 

Document #2014-10 

 

Report of the February 6
th

, 2014 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 

County Library District:   
 

A meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung County Library District was moved 

from Wednesday February 5
th

 due to the weather and was held on Thursday, February 6
th

, 

2014.  Attending the meeting were Richard Roberts, Marge Kappanadze and Georgia 

Reynolds; and Ron Shaw and Joan Santulli, CCLD management.  The meeting opened at 

5:25pm.   

 

President Roberts updated the Committee on the status of the discussions with the CSEA 

regarding the contract.  

 

Mr. Shaw discussed the following: 

o The Food Bank of the Southern Tier reported that CCLD donated food (received 

during fine forgiveness week) valued at $368.00. 

o Library Advocacy Day in Albany is scheduled for February 26
th

.  The Southern Tier 

Library System (STLS) will be hiring a bus to take interested parties to Albany.  

Board members are encouraged to attend.  

o Flood Insurance Policies have been received and are effective beginning February 

27, 2014.  

o A Memorandum of Agreement for the “Work Study Program” was signed by 

President Roberts.  

o All issues listed in the inspector’s report regarding workplace safety have been 

addressed within the appropriate timeline.  

 

Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 2/5/14 for the General Fund in the 

amount of 29,878.53 and for the Grant Fund - $6,840.81. Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by 

Ms. Kappanadze to pay the bills as listed. Motion Carried.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:05pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 

Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, March 5
th

 at 6pm in the Petrie 

Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   

 



Document #2014-11 
 
Report of the February 12th, 2014 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
A meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung County Library District was 
held on Wednesday, February 12th, 2013.  Attending the meeting were CCLD board members 
Sue Cook, Georgia Reynolds, Marge Kappanadze and community member Robin Fitzgerald. 
Also attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration.  The meeting opened at 
8am. 
 
Ms. Santulli presented the January 31st, 2014 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report will 
be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration. She also reported the receipt of the 
check from the Chemung County Treasurer for the full amount of the tax revenue due to the 
Library District for 2014.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the 2/20/14 Unpaid Bills Detail for the General Fund bills totaling 
$47,148.07 (that includes the 4th Quarter Utility payment to the County, the annual Flood 
Insurance payment and the 1st quarter payment to Perry & Carroll for Property & Liability 
Insurance). The Unpaid Bills Detail will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its 
consideration.   
 
Ms. Cook will review the entire year’s bank statements to verify that reconciliations were done 
each month per the auditor’s recommendation.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:16am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, March 12th, 2014 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   






